



# SPECIAL EDUCATIONAL NEEDS AND DISABILITY POLICY



APPROVED BY: Gill Ellis

LAST REVIEWED ON: November 2020

NEXT REVIEW DUE BY: November 2022

It is the aim of the school to comply with the Equality Act 2010 and the Children and Families Act 2014 and in relation to this policy all reasonable steps will be taken to avoid putting disabled pupils at a substantial disadvantage. The school aims to promote equality in all aspects of school life and with regard to all matters embraced by this policy will comply with relevant legislation relating to equal opportunities, race relations, sex discrimination and age discrimination.

Date of last review: November 2020

Date of next review: November 2022

Carnforth School Special Educational Needs and Disabilities Policy gives the school's definition of special needs along with its aims and objectives. It deals with admission arrangements, identification, assessment and recording and provides information about curriculum entitlement and inclusion. Information is also available about all support services and the various roles of the class teacher, the Inclusion Lead (SEND co-ordinator), the Head of School, the governors, the child and parents/carers. We feel that parents have a vital role to play in supporting their child's education and it is essential that the school and the parents work together in partnership.

If you would like a copy of the SEND Policy, please contact the school office.

Every pupil with SEN and disability in this inclusive school has an entitlement to fulfil his/her potential. This may be achieved through: personalised teaching and learning approaches, access to ICT across the curriculum; flexible learning pathways and extra-curricular learning activities; support for emotional well-being; flexible timetables; assessment for learning which engages pupils in having a say about their progress and SEND provision; and partnership with parents/carers, other schools, the local community and social service providers.

In response to the Special educational needs and disability code of practice: 0 to 25 years June 2014, (referred to in this documents as the Code) all Local Authorities must publish a 'Local Offer':

- To provide clear, comprehensive, accessible and up-to-date information about available provision and how to access it, and
- To make provision more responsive to local needs and aspirations by directly involving disabled children and those with SEN and their parents, and service providers in its development and review.

For more information on Worcestershire School's Local Offer go to:

http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/sendlocaloffer

For more information on how Carnforth support children with SEND go to:

https://www.carnforthschool.org/

(SEND offer)

or speak to the school's SENDCo: Mrs Vicky Smith

#### **Contents**

Introduction

Definition

Aims

Objectives

Safeguarding children with SEND

Admission arrangements

Role of the class teacher

Role of the Inclusion Lead (SENDCo)

Role of the Head of School

Role of the governors

Communication and liaison with parents

Pupil involvement and pupil voice

SEND in the Early Years

A graduated response

Curriculum entitlement and integration

Resources and accommodation

Support services and links with other agencies

Links with other schools/transfer to Secondary school

Training and Inset

Budget/allocation of resources

Complaints procedure

Criteria for success

Reviewing the policy

Annex 1: COVID-19 Date: 20/5/2020

#### Introduction

This SEND Policy details how the school will ensure that the necessary provision is made for any pupil who has special educational needs and that those needs will be made known to all who are likely to be involved with the child. The school will ensure that teachers are able to identify and provide for those pupils who have special educational needs and disabilities to allow them to participate fully in school life.

The Code starts from the assumption that every classroom in every school should be delivering a differentiated curriculum. This means that a wide range of needs will be catered for by the actions of the class teacher, the resources available to that teacher and the curriculum planning which the teacher undertakes for all pupils.

Our fundamental principles are that:

- A child with special educational needs and disabilities should have their needs met.
- The special educational needs of children will normally be met in mainstream schools or settings.
- The views of the child should be sought and taken into account.
- Parents have a vital role to play in supporting their child's education.
- Children with special educational needs and disabilities should be offered full access to a broad, balanced and relevant education, including the Foundation Stage Curriculum and the National Curriculum.

## **Philosophy**

The overall policy at Carnforth School reflects the high expectations we have of all our children. We ensure that all children including those with Special Educational Needs and Disabilities, receive their entitlement to a broad, balanced and differentiated curriculum enabling them to develop their full potential.

#### **Definition**

A child or young person has SEND if they have a learning difficulty or disability which calls for special educational provision to be made for him or her.

A child of compulsory school age or a young person has a learning difficulty or disability if he or she: - has a significantly greater difficulty in learning than the majority of others of the same age, or

- has a disability which prevents or hinders him or her from making use of facilities of a kind generally provided for others of the same age in mainstream schools.

For children aged two or more, special educational provision is educational or training provision that is additional to or different from that made generally for other children or young people of the same age by mainstream schools, maintained nursery schools, mainstream post-16 institutions or by relevant early years providers. Children must not be regarded as having a learning difficulty solely because the language or form of language of their home is different from the language in which they will be taught.

#### Aims

Carnforth School is an inclusive school where we aim:

- To provide a whole school response to special educational needs within the overall ethos of the school.
- To identify any difficulty as early and as thoroughly as possible, thereby building and maintaining pupils' self-esteem.
- To encourage parental co-operation and involvement and to keep parents/carers informed at every stage.
- To seek the views of the child where possible regarding plans and targets.
- To provide a positive and active approach from all the school staff to ensure that children feel valued.
- To endeavour to give maximum equal opportunity for gaining access to the curriculum.

## **Objectives**

- To set achievable targets of small learning steps thereby promoting self-esteem and a positive attitude to learning.
- To employ a variety of resources and teaching strategies to enable differentiation in the approach to the National Curriculum.
- To work in partnership with parents/carers and pupils.
- To make all staff aware of the range of external agencies available to support children.
- To make all staff aware of the need for a whole school response to Special Educational Needs

# Safeguarding children with SEND

Carnforth School is fully committed to safeguarding and promoting the welfare of all of our children. We expect every member of staff and all visitors to share our commitment as the health and safety of our children is paramount.

Children with special educational needs (SEN) and disabilities can face additional safeguarding challenges. Governing bodies and proprietors should ensure their child protection policy reflects the fact that additional barriers can exist when recognising abuse and neglect in this group of children. These can include:

- assumptions that indicators of possible abuse such as behaviour, mood and injury relate to the child's disability without further exploration;
- being more prone to peer group isolation than other children;
- the potential for children with SEN and disabilities being disproportionally impacted by behaviours such as bullying, without outwardly showing any signs; and
- communication barriers and difficulties in overcoming these barriers.

Keeping Children Safe in Education 2018

Further information can be found in the school's safeguarding policy.

## **Admission Arrangements**

We aim to admit all children to the school and to integrate them fully into life at Carnforth School ensuring that they have access to a broad and balanced curriculum. Where children attend a specialist unit (eg. a Language Unit) at pre-school level, we will liaise with that unit and if necessary a split placement or phased entry to School will be arranged.

In the event of a child attending the Pupil Referral Unit, we would liaise closely with that setting.

#### Role of the Class Teacher

- Follow the graduated response as outlined below
- To identify children who are experiencing difficulty (refer to 'definition' section) in collaboration with advice and guidance of the Inclusion Lead SENDCo.
- To differentiate within the classroom and to provide appropriate opportunities and resources.
- To monitor and record the progress of the child as an ongoing process.
- To inform parents/carers of areas of concern and to seek support and active involvement from them.
- The class teacher will organise and differentiate the child's work and will keep records of this process for assessment by external agencies should this be required.
- For children experiencing emotional/behavioural difficulties, class teachers will keep evidence of strategies used and will involve parents in a supportive role.
- As new members of staff join the school they are advised about the special needs arrangements and their role responsibility towards the implementation of the policy.

#### Role of the Inclusion Lead (SENDCo)

The SEND Co-ordinator, with the support of the Head of School and colleagues, focuses on developing effective ways of overcoming barriers to learning and sustaining effective teaching through the analysis and assessment of children's needs, by monitoring the standards of pupils' achievements, and by setting targets for improvement.

The SENDCo works with curriculum co-ordinators so that the learning for all children is given equal priority, and available resources are used to maximum effect. Their responsibilities may include:

- overseeing the day-to-day operation of the school's SEND Policy
- co-ordinating provision for children identified with SEND
- liaising with the relevant Designated Teacher where a looked after pupil has SEND
- advising on the Graduated Approach to providing SEND Support

- advising on the deployment of the school's delegated budget and other resources to meet pupils' needs effectively
- liaising with parents/carers of pupils with SEND
- liaising with early years providers, Learning Support Team, Speech and Language Team, educational psychologists, health and social care professionals, other schools especially when receiving pupils with SEND into school and independent or voluntary bodies
- being a key point of contact with external agencies, especially the local authority and its support services
- liaising with potential next providers of education to ensure a pupil and their parents are informed about options and a smooth transition is planned
- working with the Head of School and school Governors to ensure that the school meets its responsibilities under the Equality Act (2010) with regard to reasonable adjustments and access arrangements
- ensuring that the school keeps the records of all pupils with SEND up to date
- Updating reports to Governors every term regarding SEND provision.

#### Role of the Head of School

- To have an accurate overview of the SEND profile at the school and the pupils currently on SEN registers.
- To have clarity of arrangements in place in order to respond to need.
- To monitor SEN reviews in liaison with the SENDCo
- To monitor teaching arrangements made for SEND children including the deployment of teaching assistants
- To advise the LA when a formal assessment may be necessary

## **Role of the Governors**

The Governing Body must:

- do its best to ensure that the necessary provision is made for any pupil who has special educational needs
- ensure that, where the Head of School has been informed that a pupil has special educational needs, those needs are made known to all who are likely to be involved with them
- ensure that teachers in the school are aware of the importance of identifying, and providing for, those pupils who have special educational needs
- consult the governing bodies of other schools, when it seems to be necessary or desirable in the interests of co-ordinated special educational provision in the area as a whole

- ensure that a pupil with special educational needs joins in the activities of the school together with pupils who do not have special educational needs, so far as is reasonably practical and compatible with the child receiving the special educational provision their learning needs call for and the efficient education of the pupils with whom they are educated and the efficient use of resources
- report to parents on the implementation of the school's policy for pupils with special educational needs

Governors play a major part in school self-review and have established mechanisms to ensure that they are fully informed about the school, including the systems for and the outcomes of in school monitoring and evaluation. In relation to SEND, the governing body should make sure that:

- they are fully involved in developing and monitoring the school's SEND policy
- all governors, especially any SEND governors, are up-to-date and knowledgeable about the school's SEND provision, including how funding, equipment and personnel resources are deployed
- SEND provision is an integral part of the school development plan
- the quality of SEND provision is continually monitored.

## **Communication and Liaison with Parents**

The school will have regard to the Special Educational Needs and Disability Code of Practice 2014 when carrying out its duties toward all pupils with special educational needs and ensure that parents are notified of a decision by the school that SEND provision is being made for their child.

Partnership with parents/carers plays a key role in enabling children and young people with SEND to achieve their potential. The school recognises that parents hold key information and have knowledge and experience to contribute to the shared view of a child's needs and the best ways of supporting them. All parents of children with special educational needs will be treated as partners and supported to play an active and valued role in their children's education. Developing good relationships with parents is seen as crucial to success.

6.65 (Code) Where a pupil is receiving SEND support, schools should talk to parents regularly to set clear outcomes and review progress towards them, discuss the activities and support that will help achieve them, and identify the responsibilities of the parent, the pupil and the school.

- Parents can contact the class-teacher and SENDCo directly when necessary and are fully encouraged to do so.
- Parents are encouraged to give their support at home whenever possible with the emphasis on raising self-esteem and building a positive attitude.

## Pupil Involvement and Pupil Voice

Children are encouraged, in a very simplified way, to be part of the decision making and the setting of their learning or behavioural targets. The emphasis is on success and this is supported within the school's overall ethos and attitude. Children's views are gathered as part of the review process.

#### SEND in the Early Years

- Carnforth School has a nursery which is an integral part of the school. This enables us to become aware, at a very early stage, of children with SEND.
- We have good links with outside agencies and there is provision in the Early Years to respond to the needs of children with SEND
- The Foundation Stage Profile is completed by the end of Reception. This is then discussed with parents and can be an indicator of future areas of concern. Class teachers use observation and informed evaluation to assess concern and children's needs are highlighted through class plans showing a differentiated curriculum

The school will assess each child's current levels of attainment on entry in order to ensure that they build upon the pattern of learning and experience already established during the child's preschool years. If the child already has an identified special need this information will be transferred from the Early Years setting and the SENDCo and the child's class teacher will use this information to

- Provide starting points for the development of an appropriate curriculum
- Identify and focus attention on action to support the child within the class
- Use the assessment processes to identify any learning difficulties
- Ensure ongoing observation and assessment provide regular feedback about the child's achievements and experiences to form the basis for planning the next steps of the child's learning
- Involve parents/carers in implementing a joint learning approach at home.

The identification and assessment of the special educational needs of children whose first language is not English, requires particular care. Where there is uncertainty about an individual child, teachers will look carefully at all aspects of a child's performance in different subjects to establish whether the problems they have in the classroom are due to limitations in their command of the language that is used there or arise from special educational needs.

## A Graduated Response

In line with the Code of Practice the school has developed a graduated approach to supporting pupils with SEND. This is a cycle of assessment, planning and reviewing actions in increasing detail and with increasing frequency to identify the best way of securing adequate progress for pupils.

- Assess Needs: We monitor and review the progress and development of all children. High quality teaching, differentiated for individual pupils, is the first step in responding to pupils who have or may have SEN. The majority of pupils can make progress through such teaching.
- 2. Plan: Where progress gives cause for concern class-teachers work in partnership with parents/carers to develop a plan to ensure that children/young people with SEND receive the right levels of support for their future learning and development. Class-teachers, supported by the Senior Leadership Team make regular assessments of progress for all pupils. Where pupils are falling behind or making inadequate progress given their age and starting point they are given extra support.

- **3. Do**: This Graduated Response should be led and coordinated by the SENDCo working with and supporting colleagues. Parents should be engaged at each stage of this cycle, contributing their insights into assessment and planning. Intended outcomes are shared with parents and reviewed with them.
- **4. Review**: The effectiveness of the support and the impact on the pupil's progress is reviewed regularly.

Adequate progress can include progress which:

- a. Is similar to that of peers starting from the same baseline
- b. Matches or betters of pupil's previous rate of progress
- c. Closes the attainment gap between the pupil and their peers
- d. Prevents the attainment gap growing wider

Where a pupil continues to make little or no progress, or if a pupil is not developing as expected or is not responding to action being taken, school may call upon external professionals to advise and assist further. They may also help in identifying those pupils whose need for long term support is such that an EHC Assessment might be required. School uses provision mapping to track the impact and outcomes of interventions offered to the pupil.

#### **Individual Provision Maps**

Strategies employed to enable the child to progress will be recorded within an Individual Provision Map (IPM). The IPM will include information about:

- the short-term targets set for the child: this will include as a priority targets recommended in external reports where available
- the provision to be put in place: sessions and who will provide them, resources needed
- outcomes (to be recorded when IPM is reviewed).

The IPM will only record that which is additional to, or different from, the differentiated curriculum and will focus upon three or four individual targets that match the child's needs and have been discussed with the child and the parents. The IPM will be reviewed at least termly and parents' views on their child's progress will be sought. Wherever possible, the child will also take part in the review process and be involved in setting the targets.

#### External agency input

A request for support from external services is likely to follow a decision taken by the SENDCo and colleagues, in consultation with parents/carers, at a review of the IPM. External support services will usually see the child so that they can advise teachers on Individual Provision Maps with fresh targets and accompanying strategies, provide more specialist assessments to inform planning and the measurement of a pupil's progress, give advice on the use of new or specialist strategies or materials, and in some cases provide support for particular activities. The triggers for External Agency referral will be that, despite receiving individualised support the child:

- continues to make little or no progress in specific areas over a long period
- continues working at National Curriculum levels substantially below that expected of children of a similar age
- continues to have difficulty in developing literacy and mathematics skills

- has emotional or behavioural difficulties which substantially and regularly interfere with the child's own learning or that of the class group, despite having an individualised behaviour management programme
- has sensory or physical needs, and requires additional specialist equipment or regular advice or visits by a specialist service
- has ongoing communication or interaction difficulties that impede the development of social relationships and cause substantial barriers to learning.

When school seeks the help of external support services, those services will need to see the child's records in order to establish which strategies have already been employed and which targets have been set and achieved. The external specialist may act in an advisory capacity, or provide additional specialist assessment or be involved in teaching the child directly. The resulting IPM for the child will set out fresh strategies for supporting the child's progress. These will be implemented, at least in part, in the normal classroom setting. The delivery of the interventions recorded in the IPM continues to be the responsibility of the class teacher.

## School request for an Assessment of Educational, Health and Care Plan (EHCP)

Where a request for an assessment is made by the school to the LA, the child will have demonstrated significant cause for concern. The LA will need information about the child's progress over time, and will also need documentation in relation to the child's special educational needs and any action taken to deal with those needs, including any resources or special arrangements in place. The school will provide this evidence through the graduated response. This information may include:

- an individual provision map for the pupil
- records of regular reviews and their outcomes
- the pupil's health including the child's medical history where relevant
- National Curriculum levels attainments in literacy and mathematics
- educational and other assessments, for example from an advisory specialist support teacher or an educational psychologist
- · views of the parents and of the child
- involvement of other professionals such as health, social services or education welfare service.

## **EHCP needs Assessment**

EHCP needs assessment involves consideration by the LA, working cooperatively with parents, the child's school and, as appropriate, other agencies, as to whether a statutory assessment of the child's special educational needs is necessary. A child will be brought to the LA's attention as possibly requiring an assessment through a request by the child's school, from a parent or a referral by another agency. Where the evidence presented to the LA suggests that the child's learning difficulties have not responded to relevant and purposeful measures taken by the school and external specialists and may call for special educational provision which cannot reasonably be provided within the resources normally available to mainstream schools, the LA will consider the case for an EHC needs assessment. The LA may decide that the degree of the pupil's learning difficulty and the nature of the provision necessary to meet the child's special educational needs is such as to require the LA to determine the child's special educational needs provision through an Education, Health and Care Plan (EHCP). An EHCP plan will include:

- The views, interests and aspirations of the child and their parents, or of the young person.
- The child or young person's special educational needs (SEND)

- The child or young person's health needs which relate to their SEND
- The child or young person's social care needs which relate to their SEND
- The outcomes sought for the child or the young person
- The special educational provision required by the child or the young person
- Any health provision reasonably required by the learning difficulties or disabilities which result in the child or young person having SEND
- Any social care provision which must be made for a child or young person under 18
  resulting from section 2 of the Chronically Sick and Disabled Persons Act 1970 (CSDPA)
- Any other social care provision reasonably required by the learning difficulties or disabilities which result in the child or young person having SEND
- Placement
- Personal Budget (including arrangements for direct payments)
- Advice and information Refer to Chapter 9 of the SEN Code of Practice for more information.

All children with EHCP needs will have short term targets set for them that have been established after consultation with parents and child and will include targets identified in the statement of educational need or EHC plan. These targets will be set out in an IPM and be implemented, at least in part and as far as possible, in the normal classroom setting. The delivery of the interventions recorded in the IPM will continue to be the responsibility of the class teacher.

#### Annual review of an EHCP

All EHC's must be reviewed at least annually with the parents, the pupil, the LA, the school and professionals involved to consider whether any amendments need to be made to the description of the pupil's needs or to the special educational provision specified in the statement. The annual review should focus on what the child has achieved as well as on any difficulties that need to be resolved.

## Curriculum entitlement and inclusion

All pupils are taught in mainstream classes alongside their peers with the majority of learning taking place in ordinary lessons incorporating differentiation. Children who receive support are taught within the class situation or occasionally withdrawn for intensive support individually or in small groups. If children are receiving TA support the TA's liaise very closely with the class teacher and SENDCo. At all times children are taught and integrated into the main body of the school.

School follows a 'Waves of Support' approach as outlined in Worcestershire's 'Ordinarily Available' document that describes the entitlement of all children.

**Wave 1** describes quality inclusive teaching which takes into account the learning needs of all the pupils in the classroom. It includes providing differentiated work and creating an inclusive learning environment.

**Wave 2** describes specific, additional and time-limited interventions provided for some pupils who need help to accelerate their progress to enable them to work at or above age-related expectations. They are often targeted at a group of pupils with similar needs.

**Wave 3** describes targeted provision for a minority of pupils where it is necessary to provide highly tailored interventions to accelerate progress or enable children to achieve their potential.

Further information regarding Carnforth School's Waves of Support can be found on the SEND offer on the school website. https://www.carnforthschool.org/

#### Resources and accommodation

Resources have been gathered to help target general areas of learning – literacy and numeracy, visual and auditory discrimination etc. There is also information available on dyslexia, dyspraxia, speaking and listening, ADHD, autism, social skills etc., as well as books, concrete and multisensory apparatus, games and discs. ICT resources, software and games are also used. Some items are kept as a specialised resource to provide a fresh start, or new approach, but resources are generally available for all staff to use if necessary.

## Support services and links with other agencies

We have established links with the following agencies:

- Speech Language and Communication Therapist Team
- Educational Psychologist Team
- Behaviour Support Team
- Learning Support Team
- Complex Communications Team
- Physical Disabilities Outreach Team.
- Integrated Service for Looked after Children.
- Educational Welfare Office.
- Parent Partnership Service.
- Community Paediatricians.
- School Nurse.
- Clinical Psychologist.
- Occupational Therapist.
- Pupil Referral Unit.
- Language Units
- Integrated Specialist Support Service

#### Links with other schools/transfer to Secondary School

The SENDCo attends regular meetings with SENDCo's of local primary and high schools. Children visit Secondary schools with their peers and all information, copies of IPMs and reviews are passed to the next school so that staff there are very aware of SEN issues. The SENDCo also liaises regularly with the SENDCo from our partner high schools in the run up to transition.

## Training and inset

SEND issues are discussed at staff meetings and training is provided as and when necessary. TA's receive regular CPD meetings delivered by the SENDCo, members of the SLT and other agencies.

#### **Budget/allocation of resources**

The school is committed to supporting children with SEND and employs a SENDCo to work in this area. An annual budget is available for the purchase of resources, training etc.

#### **Complaints**

In the event of a complaint in respect of provision for a child with SEND, parents should first approach the Head of School who will investigate and meet again with the parent within one day. If necessary the complaint may be referred on to the Governing Body who will respond to it within one week (refer to Complaints Policy) Criteria for success The success of the system can be measured in terms of the following criteria:

- Effectiveness in identifying and meeting the needs of the children
- Accurate records of identified pupils on the register
- Provision Mapping which is realistic and well defined
- The children do not perceive themselves to be 'different' or 'failing'. Work must be based on small, achievable targets with in-built success which will raise self-esteem
- Every child feeling valued by adults and other children
- Parents and the school working together in partnership

## Reviewing the policy

The SEND policy will be reviewed and revised through day to day delivery and minor amendments will be made annually where necessary. The Governing Body will Monitor and review the Special Educational Needs policy every two years or sooner if required. If the policy appears to need modification, then the SENDCo will report its findings and recommendations to the full Governing Body.

Date of last review: November 2020
Date of next review: November 2022

# Annex 1 COVID-19 SEND

## Legal SEND changes enacted on 01/05/2020

The Special Educational Needs and Disability (Coronavirus) (Amendment) Regulations 2020 and Coronavirus Act 2020 Modification of section 42 of the Children and Families Act 2014 (England) Notice 2020.

## The Special Educational Needs and Disability (Coronavirus) (Amendment) Regulations 2020

The amended Regulations came into force on 1st May 2020 and will cease to have effect on 25th September 2020. The regulations amend the legal timescales relating to a number of statutory duties (see below) only where it is not reasonably practicable to comply with the timescales for a reason relating to the incidence or transmission of coronavirus. The timescales are replaced with a duty to complete the relevant action as "soon as reasonably practicable".

## List of statutory duties

The timescales related to the below duties will be replaced with as "soon as reasonably practicable" where it is not reasonably practicable to comply with the timescales for a reason relating to the incidence or transmission of coronavirus:

- Time frames relating to the request of Education, Health and Care Assessments, issuing of draft plans within 16 weeks and issuing of final plans within 20 weeks.
- Annual Reviews of Education, Health and Care Plan.
- Education, Health and Care re-assessment requests and amending or replacing an EHC plan following a re-assessment.
- Duties for when a pupil/student moves from one Local Authority/CCG to another.
- Time scales following the issuing of a First-tier Tribunal order.
- Time frames relating to mediation.
- Local Authority duty to disclose EHC plans in relation to higher education within 15 days.
- Duty to review the use of direct payments within the first three months of them being agreed.

# Coronavirus Act 2020 Modification of section 42 of the Children and Families Act 2014 (England) Notice 2020

For pupils with Education, Health and Care Plans the absolute duty to secure special educational provision and health care provision will now be treated as discharged if reasonable endeavours have been used. The above duty will be live during a specified period which starts at the beginning of 1st May 2020 and finishes at the end of 31st May 2020. However, the secretary of state can choose to extend this on a month by month basis. The DfE and the framework acknowledges that what constitutes reasonable endeavours will vary according to the needs of each child and young person and the specific local context. In deciding what provision would be required, it might be appropriate to consider the following:

**What?** Securing something different to the provision stated in the plan, for example in relation to availability of staff, availability of technology and any significant risk that may cause harm.

**Where?** Location where provision is to be provided may be altered, for example early years provider, school, college, community setting, home or clinic.

**How?** Frequency and timing of provision may be altered or modified in the light of available staff and risks that may cause harm.

**When?** Method of delivery may be altered, for example virtual rather than face-to-face and smaller rather than larger groups for teaching (where this can be done following the guidance on reducing transmission of coronavirus (COVID-19).

**By whom?** Changes to the person delivering the provision, for example a learning assistant under virtual supervision rather than a specialist therapist or teacher.

#### **Examples of alternative arrangements**

The types of arrangements that might be reasonable for local authorities and health commissioning bodies, working with education providers and other partners, to put in place will be dependent on the needs of the child or young person, the provision that is specified in a plan, and the specific local circumstances. Delivery is dependent on a range of factors, for example, the capacity of specialist staff to deliver particular interventions, the extent of the arrangements schools can make to provide home learning programmes and the availability of suitable IT equipment in the home.

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/changes-to-the-law-on-education-health-and-care-needsassessments-and-plans-due-to-coronavirus/education-health-and-care-needs-assessments-and-plans-guidance-ontemporary-legislative-changes-relating-to-coronavirus-covid-19

#### **Attendance**

All children with an EHCP will be offered a place in school and a risk assessment will be put in place which reflects their provision and support enabling their needs to be met. Should parents decide not to send their child to school their child will receive a C code for absence. Regular phone calls will be made to these families as per their risk assessment and encouragement to reattend will be discussed.

#### Remote Learning

Those children whose parents have chosen to keep them at home will have a home learning pack that has been tailored to their needs in relation to their IPM targets. Work has been adapted to meet their needs. Where appropriate and feasible children will be provided with packs which will enable interventions to continue remotely to meet the needs outlined on IPM's.

The school ensures pupils with SEND receive additional support with live online tutorials where needed, e.g. from an additional member of staff within the online lesson.

- Staff are sensitive to the needs of any pupils with SEND that may be affected by having the live online lesson online, e.g. not having live access to their usual support.
- The SLT, SENDCO and relevant teacher consider whether one-to-one lessons are appropriate in some circumstances for pupils with SEND.

Additional measures are considered for pupils with SEND to mitigate the risk of pupils falling behind their peers in terms of education, e.g. text transcripts being used in video lessons.

Where ever appropriate the school will endeavour to facilitate visits and support from external agencies as per the school risk assessment.